

# **Licensing Committee**

# **Minutes**

Monday, 16 May 2022 at 18:00

#### PRESENT:-

Councillor G Carpenter (in the Chair); Councillors Bensly, Bird, Borg, Cordiner-Achenbach, Galer, Hacon, Hanton, Lawn, Robinson-Payne, Stenhouse, Thompson & B Walker.

Mrs D Wilby (Licensing & Elections Manager), Ms L Clare (Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer), Mr M Brett (IMT Support Technician) & Mrs C Webb (Executive Services Officer).

Mr S McKechnie & Mr P Nicholas.

## 1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Thompson.

# 2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Robinson-Payne declared a personal interest in item number 8 as she had known the applicant over 30 years ago but had not had any recent contact with him. In accordance with the Council's Constitution, Councillor Robinson-Payne was allowed to both speak and vote at the meeting.

# 3 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2021 were confirmed.

## 4 TAXI LICENSING POLICY

The Committee received and considered the report from the Licensing & Elections Manager.

The Licensing & Elections Manager reported that following approval of the Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards which were issued by the Department for Transport, a review of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy had been undertaken.

The Licensing & Elections Manager reported that the current policy had been amended to include several proposed amendments to incorporate new procedures and legislation and was attached within the agenda report.

The Licensing & Elections Manager reported that the key changes were as follows:(i) Drivers

- 6 monthly checks using the DBS update service
- Improvements to the Local Knowledge Test to include a written element
- Updated Convictions Policy
- To utilise the NR3 database which was a national register of refusals and revocations
- To add the requirement for a HMRC tax check for renewals of Drivers and Operators which became law on 4 April 2022. This also affected Scrap Metal Dealers.

# (ii) Vehicles

• The requirement for a Basic DBS for HC and Private Hire proprietors

# (iii) Operators

 The requirement for a Basic DBS for operator base staff - to include staff receiving and making bookings.

The draft policy had been subject to 6 weeks consultation and 2 comments were received which were attached to the agenda report.

#### **RESOLVED:-**

That the Committee approve the draft policy as the new Taxi Licensing Policy.

# 5 APPLICATION FOR A FIRST CLASS HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER'S LICENCE

The Committee received and considered the report from the Licensing & Elections Manager.

The Licensing & Elections Manager reported that information from the Disclosure and Barring Service showed that the applicant had several convictions. The last conviction was received in 2019 and a summary of previous convictions that were considered relevant were included in appendix 2 to the report.

The Licensing & Elections Manager reported that the applicant had been spoken to by the Licensing team regarding the number and relevance of the convictions and why there was a need to refer to the Licensing Committee.

The Licensing & Elections Manager circulated a copy of a late reference for the applicant which had been received to all members of the Committee.

**RESOLVED:-**

That the Committee grant the application.

# 6 APPLICATION FOR A FIRST CLASS HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER'S LICENCE

The Committee received and considered the report from the Licensing & Elections Manager.

The Licensing & Elections Manager reported that information from the Disclosure and Barring Service had shown that the applicant had a conviction for drugs. The applicant had been spoken to by the Licensing team regarding the relevance of the conviction and why there was a need to refer to the Licensing Committee. A character reference had been supplied and was attached to the agenda for information.

**RESOLVED:-**

That the Committee grant the licence.

# 7 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

The Chairman reported that there was no other business being of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration at the meeting.

### 8 EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC

**RESOLVED:-**

That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12(A) of the said Act.

# 9 APPLCATION FOR A FIRST CLASS HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCE

(Confidential Minute on this Item)

### APPLICATION FOR A FIRST CLASS HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS 10 **LICENCE**

(Confidential Minute on this Item)
The meeting ended at: 20:00